ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
April 12, 2016
8:06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Regul at ory Comm ssi on of Al aska
Rebecca Pauli - Anchorage

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Al aska Board of Fisheries
| srael Payton - Wasilla
Alan Cain - Anchorage
Robert Ruffner - Sol dotna

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 126(JUD) AM

"An Act relating to the admnistration of mlitary justice;
relating to the adoption of regulations by the adjutant general;
relating to the authority of the adjutant general; relating to
appeals of convictions and sentences of court-martial s;
establishing the MIlitary Appeals Conmission; relating to the
detention and incarceration of nenbers of the mlitia; relating
to the jurisdiction of the supreme court over petitions fromthe
Mlitary Appeals Comm ssion; relating to involuntary conmm tnent
for evaluation or treatnment of a nmental disease or defect before
court-martial proceedings; relating to offenses subject to

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- April 12, 2016



court-martial proceedings; anending Rule 6, Alaska Rules of
Crimnal Procedure; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 273(STA)

"An Act relating to the transfer of the title to a vehicle,
including certain manufactured hones and trailers, on the death
of the owner; allowing a person to act for the surviving spouse
of a decedent to nake a denmand of the personal representative of
the decedent's estate related to enforcing a liability against
real property or an interest in real property transferred at
death by a transfer on death deed; and providing for an
effective date."

- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 126

SHORT TITLE: CODE OF M LI TARY JUSTI CE; APPEALS
SPONSOR(s) : JUDI Cl ARY

02/ 25/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 25/ 15 (H) M.V, JUD

03/ 24/ 15 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 24/ 15 (H -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 26/ 15 (H) M.V AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 26/ 15 (H Heard & Held

03/ 26/ 15 (H M NUTE( MLV)

03/ 31/ 15 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 31/ 15 (H Moved CSHB 126(MLV) Qut of Conmittee
03/ 31/ 15 (H M NUTE( MLV)

04/ 01/ 15 (H M.V RPT CS(M.V) NT 3DP 4AM

04/ 01/ 15 (H DP: LYNN, LEDOUX, HERRON

04/ 01/ 15 (H AM  TUCK, GRUENBERG, COLVER, HUGHES

04/ 14/ 15 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 14/ 15 (H Heard & Held

04/ 14/ 15 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

09/ 22/ 15 (H JUD AT 1: 30 PM Anchorage LI O Auditorium
09/ 22/ 15 (H Heard & Held

09/ 22/ 15 (H M NUTE( JUD)

11/17/ 15 (H JUD AT 1: 30 PM Anchorage LI O Auditorium
11/ 17/ 15 (H Heard & Held - Assigned to Subcommittee
11/ 17/ 15 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 22/ 16 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

01/ 22/ 16 (H Moved CSHB 126(JUD) Qut of Conmittee

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 12, 2016



01/ 22/ 16 (H M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 25/ 16 (H JUD RPT CS(JUD) NT 7DP

01/ 25/ 16 (H DP: CLAMAN, KELLER M LLETT, FOSTER,
GRUENBERG, LYNN, LEDOUX

02/ 03/ 16 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

02/ 03/ 16 (H VERSI ON:  CSHB 126(JUD) AM

02/ 05/ 16 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 05/ 16 (S) STA, JWD

04/ 12/ 16 (S) STA AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

REBECCA PAULI, Appoi nt ee

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Regulatory
Conmi ssi on of Al aska.

ALAN CAI N, Appoi nt ee

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Board
of Fisheries.

DW GHT KRAMER

Kenai Area Fishermen's Coalition

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of appointees: Alan
Cain, Israel Payton, and Robert Ruffner.

| SRAEL PAYTON, Appoi nt ee

Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Board
of Fisheries.

ROBERT RUFFNER, Appoi nt ee

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Board
of Fisheries.

Rl CK KOCH, Manager

Cty of Kenai

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of appointees: Al an
Cain, Israel Payton, and Robert Ruffner.

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDOUX

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska,

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 12, 2016



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 126.

LAURI E HUMVEL, Commi ssi oner/ Adj utant GCener al

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs

Al aska National Guard - Joint Base El nendorf-Ri chardson
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented informati on on HB 126.

CHRI S WEAVER, Lieutenant Col onel, Staff Judge Advocate
Al aska National Guard, Joint Base El nendorf-Ri chardson
Anchor age, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented informati on on HB 126.

KALYSSA MAI LE, Staff

Representative Gabriella LeDoux

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented i nformation on HB 126.

KAREN MANSFI ELD, Bri gadi er Cener al

Al aska Air National Guard

Joi nt Base El nendorf-Ri chardson

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented i nformati on on HB 126.

LEE KNOALES, Col onel

Al aska Arny National CGuard

Fort Richardson, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented informati on on HB 126.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8. 06: 28 AM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:06 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, Huggins, and Chair Stoltze. Senator
W el echowski arrived shortly thereafter.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

8:07:48 AM

VI CE-CHAIR COGHI LL announced that the first order of business
would be on the Governor's appointees to the Regulatory
Comm ssion of Al aska and the Al aska Board of Fisheries.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- April 12, 2016



Regul at ory Commi ssi on of Al aska

8. 08: 09 AM

REBECCA PAULI, Appointee, Anchorage, Alaska, testified as
appointee to the Regulatory Comm ssion of Alaska (RCA) and
shared her personal history. She said she was uniquely qualified
and her skills would be best put to use by serving on the RCA

VI CE-CHAI R COGHI LL asked if her advocacy for rural Al aska would
be an advantage or disadvantage. He inquired if she may have to
recuse herself when addressing rural regul ations.

M5. PAULI said since 2002 she has been an adjudicator with the
state and has been renoved from her rural advocacy role for
quite sone tinme. She believed that her background would not
cause any problens and did not anticipate a conflict.

VI CE-CHAIR COGHI LL noted that Alaska' s independent power-grids
were challenging to the RCA. He asked what chall enges she | ooked
forward to snmobothing out. He noted that the Railbelt was the
state's main and nost highly regul ated grid.

MS. PAULI conceded that Alaska's grid structure was so different
from anywhere el se because it was not connected to the Lower 48.
She remarked that Al aska's unique challenges affected both rura
and urban utilities.

VI CE-CHAIR COGHILL noted that M. Pauli would also have to dea
with water and sewer regulation as well as pipelines. He asked
if Ms. Pauli has experience in dealing with water, sewer, and
pi pel i nes.

M5. PAULI answered that she did have experience and noted her
background with water utilities.

8:14: 41 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about pending legislation that requested
exenption for power producers under 65 negawatts.

M5. PAULI replied that she did not review the legislation and
was unabl e to respond.

VICE-CHAIR COGHI LL asked if M. Pauli had any aspirations for
wor ki ng in the RCA

M5. PAULI replied that she was a lifelong resident and had a
vested interest in seeing the state continue to flourish. She

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 12, 2016



asserted that her only aspiration was to do the best job that
she can and protect the public interest which requires a
bal anci ng of many different factors.

Al aska Board of Fisheries

VI CE- CHAI R COGHI LL announced the hearing for appointnents to the
Al aska Board of Fisheries.

8:17:58 AM

ALAN CAI N, Appointee, Anchorage, Al aska, shared his extensive
background in fisheries managenent and enforcenent. He stated
that his goal was to help sustain Alaska's precious fishery
resources for generations to cone.

8:19:35 AM
SENATOR HUGA NS asked about the challenge in Cook Inlet
regardi ng nunbers of escaping Chinook sal non. He inquired how

t he Chi nook nunbers could be enhanced in the Cook Inlet.

MR. CAIN explained that the Board of Fisheries takes allocation
requests from all of the various user groups into account and
tries to inplement the best possible tools to distribute fish
He said managing the Cook Inlet fishery was an ongoing effort
and a trenmendous chal |l enge.

8:22:19 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked that M. Cain address a DNA testing study
that identifies where sal non spawn and where they are caught.

MR CAIN replied that the studies that determne the travel
routes for specific fish species was extrenely valuable for
formul ating conmmerci al and other user-group openings and
closures. He opined that DNA analysis was very inportant and
shoul d be funded.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked that M. Cain address escape-corridors
t hat allowed an enhanced nunber of fish to travel to
destinations in the Cook Inlet.

MR. CAIN explained that escape-corridors was one of the tools
utilized to fairly distribute fish. He conceded that the escape-
corridor tool was not ideal and noted pol arized opi ni ons.

VI CE- CHAI R COCGHI LL opened public testinony to address M. Cain's
appoi nt ment .

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 12, 2016



8:25:40 AM

DW GHT KRAMER, Kenai Area Fishernen's Coalition, Kenai, Al aska,
testified in support of M. Cain's, M. Payton's, and M.
Ruf fner's appointnments to the Al aska Board of Fisheries.

8.27.36 AM

| SRAEL PAYTON, Appointee, Wasilla, Al aska, detailed that he was
raised in rural Alaska and lived a substance way of life. He
revealed that he lived in Wasilla and worked for Airfranes

Al aska, the state's largest air-parts manufacturer that was
| ocated in Chugiak. He reveal ed that he was a nenber of the Mat-
Su Fish and Gane Advisory Conmittee in addition to being
involved with many other fish and ganme neetings. He set forth
that he wanted to be a board nenber because of his involvenent
in fish activities for his entire life.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked that M. Payton address the Cook Inlet's
corridors.

MR. PAYTON conceded that the Cook Inlet's conservation corridor
was a contentious and divisive issue. He admitted that fish runs
were cyclical and he did not know the corridor's inpact on the
fish runs. He noted that the Upper Cook I|nlet Managenment Area
addressed the corridor every three vyears and anticipated
proposals for changes. He remarked that Mt-Su stock was
starting to slowy clinb out of a slunp.

8:36:19 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS revealed that M. Payton was his neighbor and
thanked him for his wllingness to serve. He spoke of the
chal | enges in roadway streans that have been closed for multiple
years. He asked for M. Payton to address the «correlation
between allowing fish into fresh-water streans and its inpact on
commerci al fishing.

MR.  PAYTON discussed escapenent goals and their results. He
noted the inportance of conservation and tools to aid in it. He
pointed out that reduced Chinook nunbers were prevalent
t hroughout the state.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that the Upper Cook Inlet Managenent Area
Plan states that the burden of conservation be shared anpbngst
all user groups in close proportion to their respective harvest
when there is a stock of concern. He asked whether the
Department of Fish and Ganme was enforcing nmanagenent plans in
Upper Cook Inlet.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- April 12, 2016



MR. PAYTON noted frustrations with various issues related to
managenent plans. He said the departnent was doing a pretty good
job, but the board and the departnent needed to work nore
closely together. He set forth that the key was to work with the
managers to see what works. He remarked that the many vari ables
made the job tough. He set forth that everyone should share the
burden of conservation.

8:43:. 24 AM

ROBERT RUFFNER, Appointee, Soldotna, Al aska, detailed that his
per sonal background and experience entailed nunerical nodeling
and understanding statistics. He stated that he has a good
understanding of the statutorial-allocation criteria and would
apply them to the best of his ability when making decisions on
fisheries across the entire state. He added that he would draw
from the Sustainable Salnon Policy to address sharing the
conservation burden anmong all wusers in proportion to their
har vest .

8. 47. 44 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that M. Ruffner referenced the "shared
burden” and noted that the Departnent of Fish and Gane already
made decisions on restricting river access for Chinook sal non

He asked what the next conservation neasures would be to protect
t he Chi nook sal non run

MR. RUFFNER remarked that he was not afraid to shutdown
fisheries when there were conservation concerns and added that
he was also not afraid to further restrict anybody when
addressing fisheries. He asserted that board nenbers have a
responsibility to understanding the weaker stocks. He admtted
that he was concerned with the greater likelihood for erring
nore on the side of being conservative with fisheries due to the
reduction in the Departnent of Fish and Gane's budget.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted M. Ruffner's letter that voiced concern
about weak-stock nanagenent. He remarked that the Endangered
Species Act (ESA), an option of last resort, may be considered
if the Departnent of Fish and Gane did not pay nore attention on
t he weaker st ocks.

MR. RUFFNER replied that he did not see that the state has
reached a level that would trigger an ESA action. He voiced that
he was concerned about fish vanishing in a Kenai stream that was
nearby to where he lived. He admtted that seeing the fish
di sappear in the stream near to him was one of the reasons why
he wanted to be involved with the board.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 12, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE noted the he and M. Ruffner were in agreenent
about the ESA option.

8:52:37 AM
MR. RUFFNER commented on federal overreach and said the state
needs to take appropriate actions.

SENATOR HUGA NS addressed | ow escapenent goals in the Mat-Su and
asked M. Ruffner to comrent.

MR. RUFFNER replied that escapenent goals were decreasing due to
new information from the Departnent of Fish and Ganme. He said
addressing the causes to | owered escapenent goal s was i nportant.

8:55: 08 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS noted that Chinook fishing on the Kenai River
has been severely linmted and asked what shoul d be done.

MR. RUFFNER admtted that in-river fisheries for Chinook has
been extrenmely cut back to help the stock and noted the use of
set-nets which catch a fair amount of Kenai-bound Chinook. He
poi nted out that third-year tables have indicated an up-tick in
upcom ng Kenai-Chinook runs. He suggested that the fishery be
careful in not reacting too quickly by turning the fishing back
on until bigger returns were realized.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked how many Chinook were caught by net-
setting.

MR. RUFFNER approxi mated that half of the Kenai-Chi nook harvest
was taken by net-setting. He suggested that the allocation
criteria should frame future discussions.

8:58:41 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE asked how many "eastside" set-netter permts were
active.

MR. RUFFNER replied that there were several hundred.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked M. Ruffner to confirm that sone percentage
was not active, but the active net-setters take half of the
fish.

MR RUFFNER answered correct.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 12, 2016



RI CK KOCH, Manager, City of Kenai, Kenai, Al aska, testified in
support of M. Ruffner, M. Cain, and M. Peyton.

CHAI R STOLTZE wel comed Senator McQuire to the commttee neeting.

He closed public testinony. He noted that he opposed M. Ruffner
|ast tinme due to an inbal ance on the board, but declared that he
woul d vote for all of the appointees.

MR. RUFFNER stated that he appreciated the differences in the
desi gnees that were appoi nted.

9:05: 37 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI commented that he would vote for all three
desi gnees. He opined that board nenbers were given proxies to
represent all perspectives. He pointed out that commerci al
fisheries get 98 percent of all of the fish in Al aska. He hoped
that board nenbers renenber the | arge population in Southcentral
who want to have access to the fish.

9:07: 10 AM
SENATOR MCGUI RE announced that she supported M. Payton's
appoi nt ment .

9:08: 23 AM
At ease.

HB 126- CODE OF M LI TARY JUSTI CE; APPEALS

9:14: 22 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi derati on of HB 126.

9:14: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDOUX, Al aska State Legislature,
Juneau, Al aska, sponsor of HB 126, related that HB 126 was a
maj or change in the Alaska Mlitary Code of Justice (AMCJ). She
noted that the AMZ] had not been changed since 1955. She
summari zed that bill creates a state code of mlitary justice
that was simlar to the federal code. She explained that the
AMC]) applies to the mlitia, the Al aska National Guard, and the
Al aska State Defense Force.

She specified that the bill was a disciplinary tool and noted
two types of punishnments as foll ows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- April 12, 2016



1. Non-judicial for less serious offenses in which there are
no jail time and no separation fromthe mlitary.

2. Court-martial for breaking mlitary crimnal law that
include jail and separating fromthe Guard penalties.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX detailed that crinmes noted in the AM
included strictly mlitary as well as those wth <civilian
equi val encies. She noted that mlitia may prosecute civilian-
type crinmes only if the «civilian prosecutors decline to
prosecute. She continued that the AMZ] covered court-marti al
rul es, procedures, and an appeals process. She set forth that

the bill enpowers the Alaska National Guard to address bad
actions and sever bad actors from service. She set forth that
the bill avoids cunbersone state termnation procedures, lets

Al aska Nati onal Guard nmenbers and the public know the
expectations and the consequences were clear.

9:17: 41 AM
She detailed that the latest iteration of the bi-partisan bil
i ncl uded i nvol venent from Representative Tuck, Senat or

W el echowski, and the Al aska Nati onal Guard.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that the comm ttee had experienced a | ack of
engagenment by the attorney general's office, the Departnment of
Law, and the adm nistration regarding the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX replied that her office worked extensively
with attorneys from both Legislative Legal and the Al aska
Nat i onal Cuard.

9:23:01 AM

LAURI E HUMMEL, Conmi ssioner, Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans'
Affairs (DWA), and Adjutant GCeneral of the Al aska National
Guard, Anchorage, Alaska, said HB 126 was the nost critical
remaining step wth inproving personnel and operational
readiness in the Alaska National GGuard. She set forth that
without a workable ACMJ, the Alaska National Guard would
continue to struggle with the issues brought to light severa
years ago.

She disclosed that in response to the culture that grew in the
Al aska National Guard prior to her appointnent, she set four
goal s as foll ows:

1. Foster professionalismand ethical fitness.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- April 12, 2016



2. Create preventative nmeasures and offer conprehensive
training to mtigate inproper behavior, especially in
regards to sexual harassnent or viol ence.

3. Help victins of inproper behavior.

4. Bring offenders to justice.

COWM SSI ONER HUMVEL set forth that the Al aska National Guard was
on target with the first three goals, but the fourth goal would
never be attained w thout an updated ACMI.

She summarized that HB 126 was a critical step forward toward
bui | di ng and mai ntaining the public's trust and confi dence.

9:25:52 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS enphasi zed that the Al aska National Guard is not
| awl ess. He set forth that the chain of command and | eadership
i s what makes good units. He read the foll ow ng:

Mlitary discipline is not achieved exclusively or
primarily through use of or threat of the mlitary
crimnal law process, the court-martial. Conmanders
use the conbination of tools to maintain discipline
i ncluding |eadership by exanple, training, corrective
nmeasures, and admnistrative actions authorized by
appl i cabl e regul ati ons.

He remarked that whether mlitary or other organizations,
| eadership by exanple, high standards of performance, and taking
i medi ate action results in not having to use court-nmartials or
non-j udi ci al puni shment s.

COMWM SSI ONER HUMMEL agreed that discipline is determned by
et hi cal |eadership through the use of role nodeling and applying
the same set of standards for everyone. She addressed the | ack
of administrative procedures and a "toothless" ACMI that
i npacted the Al aska National Guard in the past.

SENATOR HUGGE NS agreed that the bill would provide another tool,
but conceded that the synptons of the people being dealt wth
does not go away just because of the tool. He set forth that the
intent is not to have conduct that has to be dealt wth.

9: 30: 32 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOANSKI  pointed out that the National CGuard
Bureau's Ofice of Conplex Investigations (QOC) did a
conprehensive investigation and issued a 229-page report
stemming from a 6-nonth long investigation on the Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- April 12, 2016



National GQ@Quard. He disclosed that OCl determned that the
foll ow ng occurred:

Actual and perceived favoritism ethical msconduct,
and that the Alaska National Guard is not properly
adm ni stering justice.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI noted that Al aska's fornmer governor said:

This culture of mstrust and failed |eadership in the
Guard ends now.

He asked if there were any recommendati ons by organi zations that
Al aska pass a uniformcode of mlitary justice.

COMWM SSI ONER  HUMMEL answered yes. She specified that OC
recoomended that a practicable code of mlitary justice be
devel oped.

9:34: 14 AM
CHRI S WEAVER, Lieutenant Colonel (LTC), Staff Judge Advocate,
Al aska Nat i onal Guar d, Joi nt Base El nrendor f - R char dson

Anchorage, Al aska, shared his mlitary background, noted that he
became a judge advocate in 2003, served as chief of mlitary
justice in Kosovo, becane a defense attorney as well as deputy
general counsel for the California National Guard, and recently
asked by GCeneral Humel to be Staff Judge Advocate for the
Al aska National Guard. He said he believed in General Humel and
asserted that she was the right |eader for the Al aska Nationa
Guard. He asserted that the nature of the job was towards his
strengths in building processes, working with people and future
| eaders so that the processes stay in place and are inplenented
correctly.

9:38: 33 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked what were his strengths and weaknesses in
bei ng fromthe outside.

LTC. WEAVER replied that his weakness was that he was still
| earni ng about Al aska, but his strengths included having a broad
experience as a defense attorney and prosecutor as well as being
given the latitude in Alaska to build a broad experience base to
assist with the bill.

9:40: 23 AM

He proceeded with a presentation on the ACM] and reviewed the
events which led up to the HB 126. He noted that the OCl issued

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- April 12, 2016



a report in 2014. He pointed out that there was no record of an
ACM) court-martial since the current code's inception in 1955.
He added that he has found no non-judicial punishment in the
Al aska National Guard. He reveal ed that nobst discipline has been
adm ni stratively done.

9:42: 03 AM
SENATOR HUGA NS asked if there was an authority to do court-
martials in the Alaska National CGuard.

LTC. WEAVER replied that the current code was not very thorough
and no one has been able to figure out exactly what is a crine.
He detailed that HB 126 would result in an ACMJ that was nore
speci fic.

SENATOR HUGA NS stated that he supported the essence of HB 126.
He surmsed that the authority for non-judicial punishment was
probably well delineated in the ACMI.

LTC. WEAVER pointed out that he has no record of a non-judicial
puni shment every being done. He said he did not know the reasons
for no non-judicial punishnments. He set forth that the new ACM
will be nore specific and bring a process to the Al aska Nati onal
Guard.

SENATOR HUGE NS noted that some Al aska National Guard nenbers
under disciplinary nmeasures where one person received an
honor abl e discharge and others were recommended for pronotion.
He reiterated that passing the bill does not nake the problem go
away and stressed that |eadership and wunderstanding the
standards was vital.

9:46: 33 AM

LTC. WEAVER concurred with Senator Huggins. He continued wth
his presentation and detailed that regulations would be
i npl emented by July 2016 if HB 126 passes.

He reveal ed that George Washington said, "Discipline is the soul
of an arny." He agreed wth Senator Huggins that |eadership was
key along with ability to discipline soldiers that do act
i nappropriately. He noted that the Alaska Crimnal Code would
have the right of first refusal on crinmes that are also
civilian. He remarked that the ACMJ] was an ongoi ng process.

SENATOR HUGE NS noted that he was concerned with the tineline in

establishing the Mlitary Appeals Commission due to the
confirmation process. He remarked that court-martialing people

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- April 12, 2016



prior to instituting the Mlitary Appeals Comr ssion was
probabl y not want ed.

9:49:16 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE voiced concern about the appointnent process and
the Legislature's |ack of involvenent.

LTC. WEAVER deferred to Representative LeDoux to address the
appoi ntnent process. He explained that the ACMI was mlitary in
nature and surm sed that the |anguage in the bill was based on
the appointnment process to the appeals courts on the federal
si de.

He addressed "Concurrent Ofenses” and explained that the
of fenses were simlar to the civilian crimes. He specified that
civilians have the right of first refusal. He said the Nationa
Guard does not want to prosecute cases that are civilian in
nature because that was the civilian court's job. He detailed
that the National Guard will not prosecute if the civilian court
prosecutes in order to avoid doubl e-jeopardy issues.

SENATOR HUGE NS asked what woul d occur if an offense happens off
of the conpound.

9:52:32 AM

LTC. WEAVER explained that jurisdiction would depend on whet her
an individual was "on orders;" however, a civilian court has the
right of first refusal for civilian crines.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if double-jeopardy would include any civi
rights actions by the US Justice Departnent.

LTC. WEAVER answered yes, if the action was a crine.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the federal governnent would be allowed
to pursue.

LTC. WEAVER answered yes, if the action was a federal crine.

He reviewed the "ACMJ Basics" and noted that offenses would be
adj udi cated through court-martials or non-judicial punishnment
(NJP) for m nor offenses.

9:54: 50 AM

He addressed the "State MIlitia" and specified that the bill
applied to individuals under "active duty" status for: Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 12, 2016



Nati onal Guard, Alaska Naval Mlitia, and the Al aska State
Def ense Force.

LTC. WEAVER examined the "National Guard Duty Status" and
specified that the ACM] applied to "State Active Duty"™ and
"Title 32" statuses.

CHAIR STOLTZE readdressed double-jeopardy and inquired if a
civilian court's adjudication be wused on the non-judicial
pr oceedi ngs.

LTC. WEAVER answered yes. He specified that non-judicial does
not play a part in doubl e-jeopardy.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if a non-judicial action could be viewed as
a personnel action.

LTC. WEAVER answer ed yes.

9:57.:23 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked what actions would occur to an Al aska
Nat i onal Guard nenber who gets in trouble "downtown" when not on
active duty.

LTC. WEAVER specified that a civilian-like crime not enunerated
in HB 126 woul d depend on whether the civilian court decides to
take the case. He said if a drilling-guard nenber's crine was
enunerated in the ACMJ under HB 126, then the National Guard
woul d have jurisdiction and the individual would be subject to
non-j udi ci al puni shment .

SENATOR HUGA NS asked what would occur if an Al aska National
Guard nenber declined non-judicial punishnment.

LTC. WEAVER specified that the idea would be for a "no turndown”
non-j udi ci al puni shnent system He explained that the reason for
a "no turndown" was due to soldiers escaping justice by asking
for a court-martial with the know edge that the case would
unli kely proceed because the process was resource intensive. He
noted that the appeal process was avail able as well.

10: 00: 42 AM

SENATOR HUGE NS asked if the Alaska National Guard's non-
judicial/Article 15 system were both "Conpany G ade" and "Field
G ade. "

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- April 12, 2016



LTC. WEAVER replied that "GCGeneral Oficer"” would be included
t 0o.

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked that M. Waver address the "no turndown”
or "not to decline" systemand its inpact on norale and conduct.

10: 02: 52 AM
LTC. WEAVER explained that justice would be swift and | eadership
woul d ensure that discipline was being dealt wth correctly.

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked how sexual assault, intimdation and
harassnment were bei ng addressed.

10: 06: 12 AM

LTC. WEAVER explained that HB 126 has taken the |anguage from
the Departnent of Defense on sexual assault. He specified that
sexual assault was a mlitary crinme that effects the unit, its
norale and its ability to performa mssion. He pointed out that
sexual assault also applied to nmale victinms. He reveal ed that
soldiers, airnmen, Judge Advocate GCeneral's Corps (JAG, and
judges were trained on sexual assault and sexual harassnent. He
reiterated that the Al aska National Guard would |ook at a case
if the civilian-side declines a sexual assault case.

SENATOR MCGUI RE concurred that sexual assault also affects nen,
entire units and famlies. She asserted that sexual assault was
a crinme of power and not of sex. She set forth that dealing with
an over-arching threat on a regular basis of intimdation,
harassnment, and sexual assault was overwhelning for a person
that was trying to defend their country or state. She said the
ability to provide preventative training was inportant as well
as responding swiftly so that everyone in the unit sees that the
conduct woul d not be all owed.

10: 09: 51 AM

LTC. WEAVER addressed what behavior can be punished under the
ACMI: mlitary offenses, and offenses chargeable in both
mlitary and civilian court. He added that "Article 134" or
"Section 634" in ACM) addressed conduct that is "counter to good
order and discipline™ or "brings discredit wupon service" as
wel | .

He expl ained that "24/7 Jurisdiction" applied to:

e Active Guard Reserve (AGR) on orders "24/7."
e Man Day (M day) does apply to mlitary offenses.
» Al aska State Defense Force.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- April 12, 2016



e State Active Duty, applies to any Alaska National Guard
menber.

* No jurisdiction for "Title 10."

LTC. WEAVER revi ewed where jurisdiction attaches as foll ows:

e Anywhere in the State of Al aska.

e Qutside the state and on orders, "official mlitary
travel ."

* Not outside the state and not on orders, "personal travel."

He addressed Non-judicial Punishnment (NJP) and explained that
NJP was wused for mnor offenses. He reiterated that serious
of fenses would go to court-marti al

He detailed that there were three |l evels of court-marti al :

1. Summary: | ower |evel
2. Special: alittle bit higher than "Sunmary."
3. Ceneral: highest |evel of court-martial.

He reviewed the levels of nmaxi num punishnents and noted the
vari abl es that affect punishnment.

10: 12: 26 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS pointed out that the jurisdiction on The State
Dense Force nenbers may inpact individuals who may not be aware
of its consequences.

LTC. WEAVER reviewed the details on the "No Turn-Down" as
foll ows:

» Wien presented with NJP, service-nenbers do not have the
right to demand trial by court-narti al

e Court-martials are very resource intensive.

 Confinenent cannot be order ed under non- j udi ci al
puni shnent .

He provided an overview of non-mlitary and mlitary offenses
w th maxi mum puni shnments al | owabl e under HB 126.

10: 14: 51 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked if SB 91, the ommibus crinme bill, would
change the penalties in HB 126.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 12, 2016



LTC. WEAVER conceded that he has not followed SB 91 through the
Legi sl ature.

10: 16: 07 AM

KALYSSA MAILE, Staff, Representative LeDoux, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, revealed that Legislative Legal
determ ned that SB 91 should not affect HB 126.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if there were any penalties of which the
deat h penalty could be appli ed.

LTC. WEAVER answered no. He specified that penalties were
limted to: confinenent, discharge, and forfeitures through
fines.

SENATOR HUGGE NS stated that "absent w thout |eave" (AWOL), was a
synptom of rising problens in units. He asked if M. Waver knew
the Al aska National CGuard's AWOL statistics.

LTC. WEAVER answered that he did not know.

SENATOR HUGAE NS asked what happens to an Al aska National Guard
nmenber that deserts.

LTC. WEAVER replied that he has dealt wth the issue and
addressi ng desertion takes a nulti-pronged approach dependi ng on
the AWOL | evel. He provided exanples and asserted that there are
consequences if a person does not neet their obligations.

10: 20: 20 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the Alaska National Guard uses
"flagging® where a person cannot nove or be pronoted after a
receiving an Article 15 for being AWOL.

LTC. WEAVER replied that the Arnmy does have "flagging," but the
Title 10 Air Force and the Air National Guard does not. He
explained that "flags" occur prior to the disposition of the
puni shmrent and the "flagging" comes off after the punishment is
recei ved.

10: 22: 30 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE asked what happens if an Al aska National Guard
nmenber fails to show up for their adjudication hearing. He noted
that not showing up for court proceedings was a comon offense
in the civilian-crimnal system and adjustnments have been nade
on sancti ons.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- April 12, 2016



LTC. WEAVER answered that a person would be separated from the
National Guard with the possibility of facing an additional
court-martial .

He summarized military crinmes and noted that conduct unbecom ng
an officer only applied to officers. He added that the Cenera
Article offense enconpassed the elenment of a wongful act and or
an additional elenment that is prejudicial to good order and
di scipline, or conduct of a nature to bring discredit on the
mlitia.

10: 25: 38 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the punishnents listed in the ACMI
were patterned after the federal Uniform Code of Mlitary
Justice (UCM).

LTC. WEAVER expl ained that some punishnents were mrrored after
the federal UCM] and sone were policy calls made by the House.

SENATOR HUGGE NS suggested that a process be instituted whereby
soneone outside the Al aska National Guard reviews the bill.

10: 28: 59 AM
M5. MAILE noted Senator Wel echowski's questions on offenses and
detailed that no new offenses were created in the bill. She

specified that some mnor changes were made, but no new crines
wer e creat ed.

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked if there will be an expert review of the
bill.

10: 31: 33 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE replied that his office wuld wrk wth
Representative LeDoux on finding a person with a critical and
i nsightful eye and not an "echo."

SENATOR MCGUI RE reiterated that the bill was a problemin search
of a solution. She continued as foll ows:

Either the victinms don't benefit or the accused does
not benefit. Ether way you look at it if you put
sonething in place that is subject to constitutional
challenge or |egal chal | enge, or is unfair or
unequi table as you | ook at other |laws making their way
t hrough, that woul d not be good.

10: 33: 16 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 12, 2016



KAREN MANSFI ELD, Brigadier General, Air National Guard, Joint
Base El nendorf-Ri chardson, Anchorage, Al aska, conmented on the
ACM) as follows:

In the mlitary, the intent of the disciplinary action
is not to renove people from the ranks, but to affect
reform and to keep them productive. Reform requires
i medi ate, neasurable, visible corrective action. HB
126, the Alaska Code of Mlitary Justice (ACMI) wll
gi ve conmanders the tools to encourage team nenbers to
behave appropriately, which pronotes good order and
di scipline, and builds trust and respect in the corps.
Wthout the ACMJ, our existing tools: reprimnd, rank
reduction, and adm nistrative discharge are just that,
adm ni strative. The paperwork processes for discipline
are not tinmely, they lack inpact, and can be invisible
to the other nenbers of the organization.

Wth the ACMI the command gains the ability to affect
pronpt corrective actions with a two-fold benefit.
First, we may change behavior at the onset when

pr obl ens are smaller and correctabl e. Second,
corrective actions are vi si bl e and refl ect
accountability to al | ot her menber s of t he

organi zation. W owe our soldiers and airnen that
accountability is a key conponent in a legal, ethical,
noral, and a transparent Al aska National Guard they
deserve

10: 35: 49 AM

LEE

KNOALES, Col onel , Alaska Armmy National Guard,

Fort

Ri chardson, Al aska, stressed the inportance of having a mlitary

code of

said the ACMJ is about enpowering | eaders.

10: 38: 03 AM

MS. MAI LE presented a sectional review as foll ows:

Section 1 of the bill gives the Suprene Court the
ability to review decisions nade by the Mlitary
Appeal s Comm ssi on.

Section 2 anends the suits against officers and
enlisted persons under AS 26.05.140 to note that the
provision does not apply to an action or proceeding
under the Code of MIlitary Justice.

justice and listed qualities discipline should have.

He

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- April 12, 2016



Section 3 is a conform ng change.

Section 4 is the "neat" of this bill, it's where the
Code of Mlitary Justice 1is being augnented or
creat ed.

M5. MAILE summarized that the majority of the bill's sections

provide for procedures initializing a court-martial and revi ewed
the three levels of court-martials and their penalties.

She pointed out that the addition of a grand jury requirenent
was unique to Alaska's code and was not in early versions of the
bill. She set forth that the grand jury requirenment was put into
the bill to reflect Al aska's hei ghtened constitutional
requi renents.

She conti nued her sectional as foll ows:

Section 5 of the bill anends AS 33.30.011 to include
"Hel d under the authority of state |law."

Section 6 requires persons confined under the Code can
be commtted to the custody of the Departnment of
Corrections as directed by the adjutant general. In
this bill there is the ability for a person to be
confined in a mlitary or civilian prison. W don't
have a mlitary prison here, so the expectation is
that they would beconme part of the Departnent of
Corrections system

Section 7 requires the attorney general to assist the
mlitary court in obtaining the commtnent of a person
accused under AS 26.05 for a conpetency exam nation

Section 8 makes conform ng changes.

Section 9 repeals those existing parts of the Code of
Justice which we previ ously heard have been
underutilized and very difficult to use.

Section 10 provides the bill applies to offenses
occurring on or after the effective date of the act.
You see in Section 12 the effective date is July 2016.

Section 11 provides the staggered terns for the
Mlitary Appeals Conmission. This is uncodified |aw

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- April 12, 2016



and just nakes it so that not everybody's term on the
Mlitary Appeals Comm ssion conmes up at the sane tine.

10: 43: 29 AM
M5. MAILE addressed crines, penalties, and the statute of
[imtations in the ACMJI as foll ows:

In early iterations of this bill, the crimes and the
penalties were not included in statute, it was the
original intention that these would be created through
regul ati on; however, because this bill is essentially
creating a judicial system for a group of people, we
felt that it was inportant to articulate these in
statutes so that any changes that were desired would
have to come through the State Legislature and be
t hor oughl y vett ed.

The statute of limtations, we clarified to say that
the inposition of non-judicial punishment is limted
to within tw years of the offense and the non-
judicial punishnent is |limted to three years wthin
t hat .

She reiterated that the crines and penalties were now in statute
and highlighted the change as the fundanmental change that has
come through the bill's iterations.

She noted that the House Judiciary Commttee had a nunber of
anmendnents, but nmany were m nor word changes.

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that HB 126 would be held in commttee.

10: 46: 31 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Senator Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Commttee at
10: 46 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- April 12, 2016



